MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING FOR THE CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES UNION SAN LORENZO VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

January 20, 2017 – December 31, 2019

RESOLUTION NO. 21

January 19, 2017

Section 8.5 Revised July 20, 2017

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTIO	DN 1 – GENERAL PROVISIONS	7
1.1	Parties to Understanding	7
1.2	Term of MOU	7
1.3	Purpose	7
1.4	Short Title	8
1.5	Plural	8
1.6	Supervisor	8
1.7	Severability	8
1.8	Recognition	8
1.9	Agency Shop	8
1.10	Agency Shop Payroll Deductions	10
1.11	Prohibition of Job Action	11
1.12	Management Rights	11
1.13	Voluntary Payroll Deductions	12
1.14	Work Rules	13
1.15	Substance Abuse	13
1.16	Amendment of MOU	13
SECTIO	ON 2 - EMPLOYEE RIGHTS	13
2.1	Time Off For Representation	13
2.2	Employee Representatives	13
2.3	Access to Work Locations	14
2.4	Access to Information	14
2.5	Use of District Bulletin Boards	14
2.6	District Facilities	15
2.7	Written Notice	15
2.8	New Hire Information	15
2.9	Accessibility of MOU	15
SECTIO	ON 3 – HIRING POLICIES	15
3.1	Employee Residence	15

3.2	Medical Examination	15
3.3	Audiogram	16
3.4	Probationary Period	16
3.5	Rejection Following Promotion	16
3.6	Driving Record	16
3.7	Driver's License	16
3.8	Proof of Insurance	17
3.9	Employment Eligibility	17
SECTIO	ON 4 – COMPENSATION	17
4.1	Application of Salary Schedule	17
4.2	Salary Range Schedule	17
4.3	Advancement of Pay Levels	17
4.4	Performance Evaluation	18
4.5	Longevity	18
4.6	Salary Schedule Adjustment	18
4.7	Tuition Reimbursement	18
4.8	Reimbursement for Licenses and Certificates	18
4.9	Continuing Education Reimbursement	19
4.10	Required Operator Certifications Reimbursement	19
4.11	Educational Incentive Pay	19
4.12	Working Out of Classification	20
4.13	Compensation for Working Out of Classification	20
4.14	Phone or Electronic Device Assignment	20
4.15	Compensation for Regular Part Time Employees	20
4.16	Requests for Salary Adjustment	21
4.17	Overtime Compensation	21
4.18	Compensation Differential	21
4.19	Holiday Compensation	22
4.20	Compensatory Time Off	22
4.21	Call Back Pay	22
SECTIO	ON 5 – HOURS, DAYS OF WORK, APPLICATION	22
5.1	Hours, Days of Work, Application	22
5.2	Normal Work Week and Work Days	22

5.3	Recording Your Time	23
5.4	Rest Breaks	23
5.5	Meal Breaks	23
5.6	Alternative Work Schedules	23
SECTIO	ON 6 – LEAVES OF ABSENCE	24
6.1	Paid Time Off (PTO)	24
6.2	Additional PTO	24
6.3	Scheduling of PTO	25
6.4	Separation of Service	25
6.5	Pregnancy Disability Leave	25
6.6	Family Medical Leave/California Family Rights Act	26
6.7	Failure to Return	27
6.8	Workers' Compensation	27
6.9	Holidays	27
6.10	Unauthorized Leave	28
6.11	Authorized Leave Without Pay	28
6.12	Military Leave	29
6.13	Jury Duty/Court Leave	29
6.14	Catastrophic Leave Program	29
SECTIO	DN 7 – INSURANCE	30
7.1	Life Insurance	30
7.2	CalPERS Group Medical Insurance	30
7.3	Group Vision Insurance	30
7.4	Group Dental Insurance	31
7.5	Long-Term Disability Insurance	31
7.6	Covered Employees and Dependents	31
7.7	Retired Employee Medical Insurance	31
7.8	Miscellaneous	31
7.9	Interviewing Committee	31
SECTIO	ON 8 – OTHER BENEFITS	31
8.1	Social Security (FICA)	31
8.2	CalPERS Retirement Contribution	32
83	Deferred Compensation	32

8.4	Supplemental Group Life Insurance	32
8.5	Uniform/Safety Shoe Allowance	32
8.6	Food Cost Reimbursement	33
8.7	Flexible Spending Account	34
SECTIO	N 9 – DISCIPLINARY ACTION	34
9.1	Disciplinary Action	34
SECTIO	N 10 – GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	35
10.1	Purpose	35
10.2	Definition	35
10.3	Representation	35
10.4	Time Limitations	35
10.5	Step One – Informal Procedure	35
10.6	Step Two	35
10.7	Step Three	36
10.8	Arbitration	36
10.9	Limitations on Authority of Arbitrator	36
10.10	Payment for Arbitrator	37
SECTIO	N 11 – SEPARATION OF SERVICE	37
11.1	Termination by Employer	37
11.2	Termination by Employee, Adequate Notice	37
SECTIO	N 12 – STANDBY DUTY ASSIGNMENT	37
12.1	Definition	37
12.2	Standby Duty Assignment	37
12.3	Standby Duty Period	38
12.4	Standby Duty Requirements	38
12.5	Change in Schedule	38
12.6	Sickness or Emergency	38
12.7	Standby Duty Compensation	39
SECTIO	N 13 – BENEFITS FOR REGULAR PART-TIME EMPLOYEES	39
13.1	Regular Part-Time Employees	39
13.2	Advancement of Pay Levels Regular Part-Time Employees	40
SECTIO	N 14 – TIME TABLE FOR SUBMISSION OF REQUESTS	40
14.1	Priority of Negotiations	40

SECTIO	ON 15 - MISCELLANEOUS	40
15.1	Outside Employment	40
15.2	CalPERS Pre-Tax Payroll Deduction Plan	40
15.3	Subcontracting	40
15.4	Reopening of MOU	40
15.5	Entire MOU	41
APPEN	DIX "A"	43
APPEN	DIX "B" - SALARY TABLE	43

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES UNION SAN LORENZO VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

1/20/17 - 12/31/19

SECTION 1 – GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 Parties to Understanding

This Memorandum of Understanding is made and entered into by and between San Lorenzo Valley Water District (herein after referred to as "District") which is represented by its Board-appointed Employee Relations Officer and other designee(s) and the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, Local 101 (hereinafter referred to as "Union") which is represented by their duly designated representative(s) and other designee(s).

District and the Union have met and conferred in good faith within the meaning of the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act (MMBA), California Government Code Section 3500 et. seq. regarding wages, hours and other terms and conditions of employment for those employees in the classifications of positions set forth in Appendix "A" attached hereto and made a part thereof. District and the Union have reached an understanding regarding these issues and have jointly prepared this Memorandum of Understanding (hereinafter referred to as "MOU").

1.2 Term of MOU

This MOU shall be effective from January 20, 2017, and shall remain in full force and effect until and including the 31st day of December 31, 2019. This MOU shall be renewed automatically from year to year thereafter, unless either party gives written notice of a desire to modify, amend or terminate it at least 90 calendar days, but not more than 120 calendar days, before December 31, 2019 or any December 31st thereafter, if it is automatically renewed. If such notice is given, the MOU shall remain in full force and effect during the entire period of negotiations. The parties shall exhaust all administrative remedies available to them pursuant to the most recently adopted San Lorenzo Valley Water District Rules and Regulations for the Administration of Employer-Employee Relations, Section 4, Impasse, prior to termination of this MOU.

1.3 Purpose

The parties hereby agree that the purpose of this MOU is to promote and provide harmonious relations, cooperation and understanding between District and the Union, and to provide an orderly and equitable means of resolving differences which may arise under this MOU.

1.4 Short Title

This document shall be known and may be cited as the "Classified Employees MOU".

1.5 Plural

Wherever the singular or plural is used in this MOU it should be construed to include the other.

1.6 Supervisor

Whenever the word "Supervisor" is used in this MOU, it shall be construed to mean the Department Head, or in the Department Head's absence, the Department Head's assigned representative.

1.7 Severability

If any provision, sentence, clause or phrase of this policy or the application of said provision, sentence, clause or phrase to any person or circumstance is for any reason held to be invalid or not in accordance with applicable provisions of Federal, State or local laws or regulation, the remainder of this policy, or the application thereof to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid, shall not be affected thereby.

Parties agree that if any of the provisions are or become in conflict with applicable law or regulation, the law or regulation will control.

1.8 Recognition

District recognizes the Union, as provided in District's Rules and Regulations for the Administration of Employer-Employee Relations, as the Exclusive Recognized Employee Union for the purpose of establishing wages, hours and other terms and conditions of employment for those employees in the classifications of positions set forth in Appendix "A", attached hereto and made a part thereof, as well as such classifications as may be added to this representation union by District during the term of this MOU.

1.9 Agency Shop

The Union as the exclusive representative of the employees covered by this MOU agrees that it has a duty to provide fair and non-discriminatory representation to all employees in all classifications of positions set forth in Appendix "A" attached hereto and incorporated herein, regardless of whether they are members of the Union.

- a. All employees and new hires employed in all classifications of positions set forth in Appendix "A" on or after the effective date of this MOU shall, as a condition of employment, either:
 - 1. Become and remain a member of the Union; or
 - 2. Pay to the Union, an agency shop service fee in an amount which does not exceed the amount which may be lawfully collected under applicable constitutional, statutory, and case law, which under no circumstances shall exceed agency shop service fee which meets the above criteria; or

3. Do both of the following:

- i. Execute a written declaration that the employee is a member of a bona fide religion, body, or sect which has historically held a conscientious objection to joining or financially supporting any public employee organization as a condition of employment.
- ii. Pay a sum equal to the agency shop service fee described above in Section 1.9(a)(2) to one of the following non-religious, non-labor, charitable funds chosen by the employee from the following charities: United Way, American Red Cross and Santa Cruz SPCA.
- b. All employees who elect membership in the Union and all employees who hereafter become members of the Union shall, as a condition of continued employment, pay dues to the Union for the duration of this MOU.
- c. The Union shall provide District with a copy of the Union's "Hudson Procedure" for the determination and protest of its agency shop fees. The Union shall provide a copy of said "Hudson Procedure" to District within thirty calendar days of the effective date of this MOU, and annually thereafter, and as a condition to any change in the agency shop service fee. The Union shall inform District of the agency shop service fee amount within thirty calendar days of the effective date of this MOU, and within thirty calendar days of any changes thereto.
- d. The Union shall provide a copy of said "Hudson Procedure" to every agency shop service fee payer covered by this MOU within sixty calendar days of the effective date of this MOU, and annually thereafter, and as a condition to any change in the agency shop service fee. Failure by an employee to invoke the Union's Hudson Procedure within thirty calendar days after receipt of the actual notice of the Hudson Procedure shall be a waiver by the employee of their right to contest the amount of the agency shop service fee.

The provisions of Section 1.9(a) shall not apply during periods that an employee is separated from the representation Union but shall be reinstated upon the employee's return to the representation Union. The term separation includes transfer out of the Union, layoff, and unpaid leaves of absences with a duration of more than thirty calendar days.

Then Union shall maintain adequate itemized record of its expenditures and financial transactions and shall make available annually to District and to all employees covered by this MOU, within sixty calendar days after the end of each fiscal year, a detailed written financial report thereof in the form of a balance sheet and an operating statement, certified as to accuracy by its president and treasurer, or corresponding principal officer, or a certified public accountant. For the purpose of distribution, District shall provide the Union with the names and addresses of all affected employees.

The Union shall indemnify, defend, and hold District and its officers, agents, representatives and employees harmless from and against any and all liabilities arising out of or relating to any claims, demands, suits, actions, orders, or judgements, or other forms of liability that arise out of or by reasons of this agency shop Section, or action taken or not taken by District under this Section. This includes, but is not limited to, District's attorney's fees and costs.

In the event that employees represented by the Union and covered by this MOU rescind "Agency Shop", all employees who are members of the Union shall remain members of the Union for the term of this MOU.

1.10 Agency Shop Payroll Deductions

During the term of this MOU District shall make agency shop payroll deductions subject to the following provisions:

- a. A written District Payroll Authorization Form for this purpose shall be acceptable to and/or provided by District.
- b. A complete and properly executed written District Payroll Authorization Form shall be on file with District.
- c. All employees, and all new hires, in all classifications of positions set forth in Appendix "A" on or after the effective date of this MOU shall, within thirty calendar days, execute a written District Payroll Authorization Form for the payroll deduction of one of the options specified in Section 1.9(a). In the absences of said written District Payroll Authorization Form, District shall deduct an amount equal to the aforementioned agency shop service fees from the employee's paycheck.
- d. Payroll deductions shall begin with the payroll period which ends on the thirtieth calendar day or more following receipt by District of the properly executed written District Payroll Authorization Form.
- e. Payroll deductions shall be made on the first pay period of each calendar month.
- f. The Union shall provide District with written certification from an appropriate official as to the number of monthly amounts to be deducted. This certification notice shall be effective for all employees. Any change in the number of the monthly amounts to be deducted shall be certified as aforestated and delivered to District at least thirty calendar days prior to the first pay period of the calendar month prior to the change becoming effective.
- g. Deductions shall be made only when the employee's earnings for the pay period are sufficient after other legally required deductions are made.
- h. Deductions for dues and agency shop service fees shall be forwarded to the Union within thirty calendar days following the end of the pay period when the deductions were made along with a list of employees' names and the amount deducted.

- i. District shall forward deductions for charitable organizations to the Union within thirty calendar days following the end of the pay period when the deductions were made, along with a list of employees' names, names of charitable organizations and the amount deducted. The Union shall forward the contribution to the appropriate organization within thirty calendar days.
- j. District shall not be liable to the Union by reason of requirements of this Section for the remittance or payment of any monies other than the constituting actual deductions made from the pay earned by the participating employee(s). In addition, the Union shall refund to District any amounts paid to them in error upon presentation of supporting evidence.
- k. The Union shall indemnify and hold District, and its officers, agents, representatives, and employees harmless from any and all liability resulting from any claims, demands, lawsuits, or any other action arising from or by reason of compliance with any provisions of this Section.

1.11 Prohibition of Job Action

- a. During the term of this MOU neither the Union, nor any of their officers, agents, representatives and/or any employees, for any reason, will authorize institute, aid, condone or engage in a slowdown, work stoppage, strike, sympathy strike, or any other interference with the work or statutory functions and obligations of District.
- b. During the term of this MOU neither District no any of its officers, agents and/or representatives, for any reason, shall authorize, institute, aid or promote any lockout of employees covered by this MOU.
- c. The Union agrees to notify all officers, agents, representatives and/or employees of their obligation and responsibility to remain at work during any interruption which may be caused or initiated by others, and agrees to take affirmative actions to encourage employees violating this Section to return to work and cease such actions.
- d. District may discharge or discipline any employee who violates Subsection (a) of this Section of this MOU, and/or any employee who fails to carry out their responsibilities under Subsection (c) of this Section of this MOU.
- e. Nothing contained herein shall preclude District from obtaining judicial restraint and damages in the event of a violation of this Section.

1.12 Management Rights

It is understood and agreed that District possesses the sole right and authority to operate and direct employees of District and its various departments in all aspects, including but not limited to, all rights and authority exercised by District prior to the execution of this MOU, except as modified in this MOU. These exclusive District rights include, but are not limited to the following:

a. Right to determine the purpose, mission and policies of District and its departments;

- b. To set for all standards of service offered to the public;
- c. To plan, direct, control and determine the operation or services to be conducted by the employees of District;
- d. To determine the procedures and standards for selection for employment and promotion;
- e. To schedule, assign and direct District employees;
- f. To determine the methods, means, and number of personnel needed to carry out District's mission;
- g. To promote, suspend, discipline or discharge for just cause;
- h. To establish work and productivity standards;
- i. To assign overtime;
- j. To lay off or relieve employees from duty due to lack of work, funds, or other legitimate reasons;
- k. To make, publish and enforce rules and regulations;
- I. To maintain the efficiency of governmental operations by exercising control and discretion over its organization and the technology of performing District work;
- m. To determine the content of job classifications;
- n. To contract out for goods and services;
- o. To introduce new or improved methods, equipment or facilities;
- p. To take any and all necessary actions as may be deemed necessary to carry out the mission of District in emergencies, provided that no right exercised or enforced during an emergency is contrary to or inconsistent with the provisions of this MOU; and
- q. To determine the amount of budget to be adopted to carry out the purpose, mission and policies of District.

1.13 Voluntary Payroll Deductions

During the term of this MOU and to the extent the State of California laws permit, and as provided herein, District, in addition to deductions required by law and deductions authorized pursuant to Section 1.10, Agency Shop Payroll Deductions of this MOU, will make voluntary payroll deductions for U.S. Savings Bonds, Employee's Bank/Credit Union, Deferred Compensation, Flexible Spending Plan, Supplemental Life Insurance, and District Employee's Social Organization. The participating employee's complete and properly executed written Voluntary Authorization Form for said payroll deductions shall be on file with District. Payroll deductions shall begin with the payroll period which is fourteen calendar days or more following receipt by District of properly executed written Voluntary Authorization Form.

1.14 Work Rules

District may prepare, issue, and enforce work rules, policies, procedures and safety regulations necessary for safe, orderly and efficient operation. Whenever District issues new work rules, or changes previously issued work rules, employees and the Union will be given at least fourteen calendar days prior notice before the effective date, absent an emergency, by providing written notification to the Union and by posting said work rules on Departmental bulletin boards, unless otherwise mutually agreed to by both parties. The purpose of the prior notice is to provide the Union with the opportunity to discuss said work rules with District before they become effective, if the Union so requests. Said request shall be in writing and submitted to District Manager.

1.15 Substance Abuse

In order to help provide a safe work environment and to protect the public, District may require all employees to participate in a program to detect, treat and prevent substance abuse, toward the objective of avoidance of alcohol or controlled substance abuse.

1.16 Amendment of MOU

No amendment or change to this MOU shall be valid or binding unless made in writing and signed by the duly authorized representative(s) of both parties.

SECTION 2 - EMPLOYEE RIGHTS

2.1 Time Off For Representation

A reasonable number of designated Union representatives shall be granted reasonable time off, without loss of compensation or other benefits, solely for the purpose of meeting and conferring with District's designated Employee Relations Officer or his/her duly authorized representative(s) on matters within the scope of representation.

2.2 Employee Representatives

The Union shall have the right to certify two Employee Representatives and two Alternate Employee Representatives to serve as authorized "Stewards" for the Union. The Union agrees to provide District Manager with a written list of the names of the employees duly authorized as Union Stewards within forty-eight hours of certification and said list shall be kept current thereafter. District will recognize only employees designated as said authorized Union Stewards.

Said designated Union Stewards or other appropriate representative(s) or agent(s) of the Union may represent employees covered by this MOU in matter appropriate for formal grievance handling as set for in Section 10, Grievance Procedures, of this MOU. Union Stewards designated to transact such grievance handling shall first obtain permission from their immediate Supervisor and provide the purpose of said business prior to leaving their work location. Approval to leave may be denied if such an absence would cause an undue interruption of work. Whenever a Union Steward has been denied approval to leave their work location pursuant to this Section the matter shall be rescheduled to a mutually agreed upon time and date

2.3 Access to Work Locations

District agrees to grant the Union, and their duly authorized representative(s) or agent(s), reasonable access to work locations during normal working hours for the purpose of processing grievances, disciplinary meetings or other matters within the scope of representation, provided that the Supervisor of such work location is notified prior to entry and provided the purpose of said visit. District may require said representative to identify employee(s) they plan to contact, approximate length of the visit and specific locations to be visited. The Union agrees that such access shall not interfere with the work process, safety or security of the work area.

District may deny access to work areas if it is deemed that a visit at that time would interfere with work operations. If access is denied, the representative(s) shall be informed when such access will be made available. Such access shall not be more than twenty-four hours excluding Saturday, Sunday and legal holidays, after the time of said request, unless otherwise mutually agreed thereto.

2.4 Access to Information

The Union shall have access to such non confidential information pertaining to employee relations as is contained in the public records. All materials relating to benefit coverage shall be provided in a timely manner to the Union.

2.5 Use of District Bulletin Boards

The Union shall be granted reasonable access to District bulletin boards for the posting of notices. The use of District bulletin boards shall be restricted and subject to the following conditions:

- a. Any and all such material shall solely be related to the reasonable administration of employer-employee relations and within the scope of representation.
- b. All materials must be dated and identify the publisher.
- Prior to posting, one copy of any and all such materials shall be filed with District Manager at least twenty-four hours in advance, unless otherwise approved by District Manager.
- d. All material shall be removed not more than twenty-one calendar days after the publication date.
- e. No defamatory, political or libelous material shall be posted.
- f. Posting of material anywhere except on District bulletin boards is prohibited.

2.6 District Facilities

The Union and/or their duly designated representatives may, with prior written approval of District Manager, be granted the use of District facilities for meetings of Union, provided space is available. All such requests shall be made in writing with at least twenty-four hour advance notice and shall state the specific purpose or purposes of said meeting, unless otherwise approved by District Manager. Said meetings shall not interfere with the normal work duties of employees. The use of District equipment other than items normally used in the conduct of said meetings is strictly prohibited.

2.7 Written Notice

District will provide the Union with a fourteen calendar day written notice prior to any change and/or addition of any ordinance, regulation or resolution relating to matters within the scope of representation proposed to be adopted by the Board of Directors. This will provide the Union adequate time to respond and to afford an opportunity to meet with District regarding any changes or additions.

2.8 New Hire Information

The Union shall be notified in writing of the name and classification of all new hires into the classifications listed in Appendix "A" within the first pay period following the new employee's starting date.

2.9 Accessibility of MOU

District shall provide a copy of this MOU to all employees covered by this MOU. District shall provide a copy of this MOU to all new employees in the classifications of positions listed in Appendix "A" during new hire processing.

SECTION 3 – HIRING POLICIES

3.1 Employee Residence

All employees covered by this MOU who are required to perform standby duty assignment pursuant to Section 12.2, Standby Duty Assignment of this MOU shall as a condition of their continued employment with District, be required to have their place of residence within a sixty minute response time of District Operations Building, 13057 Highway 9, Boulder Creek, California.

3.2 Medical Examination

When an applicant is offered employment with District, the applicant may be required to complete a prescribed general medical and physical examination before being placed on the payroll as a probationary employee. District Manager shall review the medical and physical examination report and may reject an applicant based upon lawful criteria. A California licensed physician designated and paid for by District shall conduct such medical and physical examination.

3.3 Audiogram

An audiogram may be required as part of the pre-employment process. Audiograms shall be provided at District expense, and subject to all other rules regarding the pre-employment medical and physical examination.

3.4 Probationary Period

All original and promotional appointments in the competitive service shall be tentative and subject to a probationary period of not less than six calendar months of actual service. The probationary period shall be regarded as part of the examination process and shall be utilized for closely observing the employee's work and the employee's ability to work with other employees and for securing the most effective adjustment of a new employee to their position. Time spent on leave without pay shall not count toward completion of the probationary period. The probationary period may be extended at the discretion of District Manager. Extension of the probationary period shall be for appropriate circumstances and for a specific period of time up to and including six months. No such extension shall exceed six additional months, and no further extensions shall be granted. If the service of a probationary employee has been satisfactory, regular employment status shall begin with the day following the expiration date of the probationary period. During the probationary period the employee may be recommended for rejection at any time without cause and without right of a grievance, hearing or appeal. During the probationary period for an original or promotional appointment all employee insurance benefits shall accrue in accordance with the provisions of coverage and enrollment as exists pursuant to District's incumbent insurance providers. During the probationary period for an original appointment all employee leave benefits shall accrue but cannot be taken without prior written approval of District Manager. This does not apply to paid holidays. During the probationary period the employee shall be eligible for holiday pay.

3.5 Rejection Following Promotion

Any employee rejected during the probationary period following a promotional appointment shall be given the opportunity to be reinstated to a position in the class from which the employee was promoted. If there is no vacancy in such position, the employee may request to be placed on a re-employment list. Such opportunity will not be given if the employee is discharged by disciplinary action pursuant to this MOU.

3.6 Driving Record

District may obtain driver's license information records on each employee in accordance with the California Vehicle Code. Should an employee whose job requires driving a District vehicle be determined to be uninsurable by District's insurance broker, or be without a valid California driver's license, that shall be grounds for dismissal in the absence of evidence of extenuating circumstances.

3.7 Driver's License

All employees covered by this MOU who are required to drive a District and/or their own vehicle for the purpose of District business are required as a condition of continued employment to obtain and maintain a Class C Driver's License from the State of California Department of Motor Vehicles. District may designate specific position classifications

which require, as a condition of continuing employment, the possession and continued maintenance of a Class A or Class B Driver's License from the State of California Department of Motor Vehicles to operate certain vehicles or equipment. District shall pay for any required physical examination for the employee to obtain and maintain said Class A or Class B Driver's License.

3.8 Proof of Insurance

All employees covered by this MOU who are required to drive their own vehicle on District business are required as a condition of continued employment to obtain and maintain vehicle insurance for said vehicle in accordance with applicable State of California standards. Employees who drive their own vehicle for District business will be reimbursed for mileage at the IRS standard mileage rate.

3.9 Employment Eligibility

All new employees shall be required to provide written evidence of the right to work in the United States of America in accordance with applicable requirements.

SECTION 4 - COMPENSATION

4.1 Application of Salary Schedule

All job classifications, except District Manager, shall be paid a base hourly rate of pay applicable to the schedule established for that position as set forth in the Salary Schedule Appendix "B" which is attached to and made a part of this MOU. The minimum step of a salary or wage range generally shall apply to employees upon original appointment. District Manager may, when circumstance warrant, authorize original appointments above the minimum step.

4.2 Salary Range Schedule

The salary range schedule shall be an integrated schedule consisting of seven steps with a 5% differential between each step in the salary schedule.

4.3 Advancement of Pay Levels

No advancement of pay levels shall be made above the highest step established in the salary schedule for an employee's class or position except in accordance with this MOU. Advancement from step to step within the salary schedule shall not be automatic but shall be based upon merit as exemplified by recommendations of District Manager. All original and promotional appointments in the competitive service entering at the first step of a salary range shall be eligible for consideration for advancement to the second step upon completion of six months of actual service and the achievement of satisfactory standards of performance based upon a written performance evaluation report. The anniversary date for future merit increase consideration shall be adjusted to the effective date of this merit increase. Upon receiving regular employment status every employee in the competitive service shall be eligible for consideration for advancement to the next higher step, if any, whenever the employee has been compensated at a step for one year of actual service and the achievement of satisfactory standards of performance based upon a written performance evaluation report.

4.4 Performance Evaluation

All employees covered by this MOU shall receive an employee evaluation at least once a year by his/her manager.

4.5 Longevity

In addition to an employees' base hourly rate of pay as provided in Section 4.2, Salary Range Schedule, of this MOU, after completion of fifteen years of continuous service with District, each full-time employee covered by this MOU shall be eligible to receive a 5% salary increase upon evidence of a satisfactory performance evaluation and approval of District Manager. Eligibility for this increase must be renewed each year thereafter in the same manner as that of the end of the fifteenth year. The increase shall be paid on an hourly basis over the entire year. Failure to receive a satisfactory performance rating, and the resultant loss of the increase shall not be considered disciplinary action, as this increase is intended to be renewed each year and is a reward for both continuous service at District and satisfactory service during the previous year.

4.6 Salary Schedule Adjustment

Effective as of the first payroll commencing after January 20, 2017, the salary schedule for all employees covered by this MOU shall be increased by 3.0% as a Cost of Living Adjustment (hereinafter referred to "COLA"). Effective as of the first payroll period commencing on January 1, 2018, the salary schedule for all employees covered by this MOU shall be increased by 3.0% as a COLA. Effective the first payroll commencing January 1, 2019, the salary schedule for all employees covered by this MOU shall be increased by 3.0% as a COLA.

4.7 Tuition Reimbursement

District shall reimburse any employee covered by this MOU the cost of tuition and books for pertinent job related courses. For a course to be considered "pertinent" it must be an academic or vocational course taken for credit from an accredited college, university, or adult education department, and such course must improve the employee's knowledge and skills for the present position or other position within District. Any employee seeking this benefit must submit a written request for approval of eligibility prior to enrollment. Approval must be obtained from the employee's Supervisor and District Manager. Prior to reimbursement, the employee must demonstrate successful completion of the course and receipt of a passing grade. The maximum reimbursement for each employee shall be \$250.00 per fiscal year.

4.8 Reimbursement for Licenses and Certificates

Any employee covered by this MOU shall be reimbursed for the cost of licenses and certificates which are required by job class specifications or approved by District Manager as a pertinent job related license or certificate. Any employee seeking reimbursement for a pertinent job related license or certificate must submit a written request for prior approval. Fees for Class C California driver's licenses shall not be reimbursed under the provisions of this Section. District shall provide reimbursement for Class A and Class B California Driver's license fees, where such licenses are required by job class specifications or approved as a pertinent job related license by District Manager.

4.9 Continuing Education Reimbursement

Any employee covered by this MOU shall be reimbursed upon successful completion the cost of tuition and books for continuing education contact hours required by the State of California, Department of Public Health (DPH), Operator Certification Program. Said reimbursement shall only be for the renewal of certifications which are required by a job class specification. Any employee seeking reimbursement for a required continuing education contact hour must submit a written request for approval of eligibility prior to enrollment. Written approval must be obtained from the employee's supervisor and District Manager.

4.10 Required Operator Certifications Reimbursement

When any employee covered by this MOU is required by job class specification to possess a valid operator certification pursuant to the State of California, Department of Public Health (DPH), Operator Certification Program, and the employee does not currently possess the DPH certificate as of the effective date of this MOU, District shall reimburse said employee upon successful completion for the cost of tuition and books for required "specialized training" in order to be eligible for the applicable certification examination. Any employee seeking reimbursement for required "specialized training" must submit a written request for approval of eligibility prior to enrollment. Written approval must be obtained from the employee's supervisor and District Manager.

In addition, any employee covered by this MOU, upon successful possession of applicable certifications required pursuant to this Section, shall be reimbursed the applicable examination fee and certification fee.

4.11 Educational Incentive Pay

District shall provide educational incentive pay for all employees covered by this MOU who have completed their probationary period. This educational incentive pay, which shall be in addition to an employee's base hourly rate of pay, shall be based upon and added to the employee's base hourly rate of pay in accordance with the following schedule:

Educational Incentive Step	Educational Incentive
Rate E1	2.5%
Rate E2	5.0%
Rate E3	7.5%
Rate E4	10.0%

Any employee covered by this MOU may request an Educational Incentive Step upon the successful completion of a pertinent job related course and certification. To be considered "pertinent" both the course and certification must improve and advance the employee's knowledge and skills for the present position. Certifications required in job class specifications or courses reimbursed pursuant to Section 4.7, Tuition Reimbursement, of this MOU, are not applicable under this Section. Any employee seeking this benefit must submit a written request for approval of course and certification eligibility prior to

enrollment or obtainment of certification. Approval must be obtained from the employee's Supervisor and District Manager. The employee must demonstrate successful completion of the course and possession of the certification. Employees must progress sequentially through the four Educational Incentive Steps, beginning with Step E1. Furthermore, employees shall not be eligible to progress to a higher educational step unless they have been at their current Educational Incentive Step a minimum of one calendar year. No educational incentive wage will be paid or continue to be paid for any certifications or course which are a minimum requirement of a job specification.

4.12 Working Out of Classification

All employees covered by this MOU who are assigned the full duties and responsibilities of a higher paying classification for two 8-hour days or more shall be considered to be working out of classification. Working out of classification includes, but is not limited to:

- a. The employee assumes a temporary position in said classification because of the creation of a short-term position; or
- b. The employee performs such duties due to the absence of a regular employee for reasons of PTO, sickness, etc.

4.13 Compensation for Working Out of Classification

When an employee is determined to be working out of classification as defined in Section 4.12, Working Out of Classification, of this MOU, such employee shall be entitled to a salary increase of 5% over that employee's regular permanent position salary for the entire period said employee is working out of class.

4.14 Phone or Electronic Device Assignment

District at its sole discretion, may require employees covered by this MOU to regularly carry a District provided phone or electronic paging devices. Phone or electronic paging device assignment pursuant to this Section requires that employees so assigned shall confirm to the following conditions:

- a. Continuously carry the phone or electronic paging device except when on approved PTO.
- b. Respond to District by telephone or other telecommuting device within sixty minutes of notification.

4.15 Compensation for Regular Part Time Employees

Regular part-time employees shall be compensated at the hourly equivalent of an appropriate step of the applicable job classification.

4.16 Requests for Salary Adjustment

An employee may request a salary adjustment to a higher step within their salary range as set forth in Appendix "B" attached to this MOU and made a part thereof. The procedure is as follows:

- a. Employee contacts their immediate Supervisor.
- b. Employee gathers information and meets with their immediate Supervisor and Department Head.
- c. Employee and Department Head meet with District Manager.
- d. District Manager shall inform the employee and Department Head of his/her decision in writing within fourteen calendar days.
- e. All above steps shall be in writing.
- f. The procedure shall have a maximum of fourteen calendar days between each step.
- g. All time spent on an employee's request for salary adjustment shall be spent on employee's time except for meetings with immediate Supervisor, Department Head and District Manager.
- h. Any request for a salary adjustment above the highest regular step in the salary range shall be rejected and not processed further.

4.17 Overtime Compensation

a. Definition

Overtime shall be defined as all authorized work ordered and performed in a paid status in excess of forty hours in a seven consecutive day (i.e. 168 hours) pay period. Solely for the purpose of this Section the 168-hour pay period shall begin at 12:01 a.m. Thursday and continue to midnight the following Wednesday. All overtime shall have the approval of the employee's immediate Supervisor prior to actual performance of the work. The parties specifically understand that this overtime pay provision shall not apply to base standby duty compensation pursuant to Section 12.7, Standby Duty Compensation, of this MOU, and unauthorized hours of work.

b. Overtime Compensation

Employees covered by this MOU shall be paid one and one-half times their base hourly rate of pay for all authorized and performed hours of work in excess of forty hours paid time per week.

4.18 Compensation Differential

Employees covered by the MOU, in addition to base hourly rate of pay and/or overtime rates of pay, shall be paid a compensation differential. Compensation differential is equal to one-half times their base hourly rate of pay for all authorized and performed hours of work between 12:00 midnight and 6:00 a.m.

4.19 Holiday Compensation

Employees covered by this MOU, in addition to their base hourly rate of pay and/or overtime pay, shall be compensated eight hours pay, compensable at their base hourly rate of pay for working on a holiday designated pursuant to Section 6.9, Holidays, of this MOU.

4.20 Compensatory Time Off

At the employee's written request and upon approval of the Supervisor, employees may receive compensatory time off in lieu of overtime cash compensation. Compensatory time off shall be compensated at the rate of one and one-half hours of compensatory time for one hour of overtime worked. Compensatory time off shall not be allowed to accumulate beyond sixty hours at any given time. The procedure for scheduling compensatory time off is the same as scheduling PTO in Section 6.3, Scheduling of PTO, of this MOU.

4.21 Call Back Pay

Call Back Pay is defined as an unscheduled return to duty outside regularly scheduled work hours, assigned and scheduled overtime work hours and/or standby duty assignment pursuant to Section 12.2, Standby Duty Assignment, of this MOU. District shall provide all employees covered by this MOU with a minimum of two hours pay at the rate of one and one-half times the employees base hourly rate of pay or one and one-half times the actual hours worked, whichever is greater, when an employee has left the work premise and the employee is called back to work pursuant to this Section.

There shall not be any duplication or pyramiding of payment under this Section. An employee shall not be credited with more than one 2-hour minimum guarantee for work performed during any two hour period. Call Back Pay shall only apply when an employee is required to physically return to a work site (e.g. leave home or other off-duty location) in order to perform required duties. An employee who is called back to duty shall not be considered on duty until said employee reaches District Operations Building or job site whichever occurs first and shall end upon completion of the work for which the employee was called back to perform.

SECTION 5 – HOURS, DAYS OF WORK, APPLICATION

5.1 Hours, Days of Work, Application

This Section is intended to define the normal hours of work per day or per week in effect at the time of execution of this MOU. Nothing contained herein shall be construed as preventing District from retaining the exclusive right, subject to and in accordance with applicable laws and this MOU, to determine the mission of District, to direct employees in the performance of their work and to retain the authority vested by law in District and its duly elected or appointed officers.

5.2 Normal Work Week and Work Days

The normal work week shall consist of forty hours per calendar week and such additional overtime as may from time to time be required in the judgment of District. The normal work week shall consist of five consecutive eight hour work days in a calendar work week interrupted by an unpaid one hour lunch period. Said hours shall normally be performed

between hours of 7:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. Prior to changing a normal workweek schedule, District shall give all affected employees a twenty-eight calendar day notice, notwithstanding emergencies. Assignments of a normal workweek schedule which includes Saturday and/or Sunday shall be distributed equally as practical among the employees within a specific position classification.

5.3 Recording Time

The minimum timekeeping interval shall be fifteen minutes. Periods of time of seven minutes or less shall be rounded down and periods of eight minutes or more shall be rounded up.

5.4 Rest Breaks

All employees covered by this MOU shall receive one continuous ten minutes net rest period for every four hours worked. The rest period shall be granted near the middle of each four hour work period, whenever this is feasible. Actual rest periods shall be scheduled and coordinated by the Supervisor. Rest periods are not accumulative, nor shall they be added to any meal period, PTO, compensatory time off or any other authorized absence from work. Rest periods shall be taken at the work site at the time of said break. Rest periods not taken shall be waived. Rest periods shall be considered work time.

5.5 Meal Breaks

All employees covered by this MOU will be given up to a one hour meal period, but not less than a thirty minute meal period, which shall typically take place between the period 12:00 noon and 1:00 p.m. The meal period shall be considered as unpaid time. The meal period may be adjusted due to necessary operational considerations as determined by the employee's immediate Supervisor.

The total time of the meal period shall not exceed one hour. If an employee wishes to take a meal period at a time other than the normal designated time period or for duration other than one hour in length, prior approval must be obtained from the employee's immediate Supervisor.

5.6 Alternative Work Schedules

District acknowledges that there may be benefits to District and the employees in alternative work schedules. Employees may request in writing, that their Supervisor consider an alternative work schedule. District may give consideration to such requests, within existing law and policy, but is under no obligation to approve any alternative work schedule.

SECTION 6 – LEAVES OF ABSENCE

6.1 Paid Time Off (PTO)

District shall grant PTO in lieu of sick leave, personal business leave, vacation and bereavement leave for all employees covered by this MOU. Employees hired by District prior to January 1, 2017 and covered by this MOU shall be entitled to accumulate PTO in accordance with the following schedule:

Years of Continuous Service	Hours of PTO Accrued Per Bi- Weekly Pay Period	Maximum PTO Accumulation
Less than 5	9.23 Hours	360 Hours
Begin 6 th Year	10.77 Hours	420 Hours
Begin 11 th Year	12.30 Hours	480 Hours

All employees hired by District after December 31, 2016 and covered by this MOU shall be entitled to PTO in accordance with the following schedule:

Years of Continuous Service	Hours of PTO Accrued Per Bi- Weekly Pay Period	Maximum PTO Accumulation
Less than 5	6.15 Hours	280 Hours
Begin 6 th Year	9.23 Hours	380 Hours
Begin 11 th Year	10.77 Hours	440 Hours
Begin 21 st Year	12.3	480 Hours

On the first regularly scheduled payroll date which occurs on or after July 1st of each year any PTO in excess of the maximum PTO accumulation rate shall be paid directly to the employee at the employee's base hourly rate of pay in effect for the employee's regular job on said date.

6.2 Additional PTO

For all employees hired by District prior to January 1, 2017 and covered by this MOU who do not receive uniforms, in addition to PTO provided pursuant to Section 6.1, Paid Time Off (PTO), of this MOU, District shall grant an additional sixteen hours of PTO. Said additional PTO is granted in lieu of uniforms. The additional sixteen hours of PTO shall be accrued on July 1st of each year and added to each employee accumulated PTO balance following direct payment pursuant to Section 6.1, Paid Time Off (PTO), of this MOU for PTO of the of the maximum PTO accumulation rate.

6.3 Scheduling of PTO

The scheduling of PTO and the amount of PTO granted during any particular period are matters of administrative discretion. Observance of PTO must be approved in advance by employee's Supervisor except in cases of emergency. PTO requests which are greater than two work days in duration shall be submitted for approval no less than thirty calendar days prior to such leave. PTO requests which are two workdays or less in duration shall be submitted for approval no less than seven calendar days prior to such PTO. Notwithstanding the conditions contained herein regarding the scheduling of PTO, employees covered by this MOU may submit for approval PTO requests which are two work days or less in duration without the seven day advanced notice provided; however, such requests shall be limited to a maximum total of four PTO days per year. Solely for the purpose of this Section a year shall be defined as July 1 – June 30. The time during the calendar year in which an employee may take PTO shall be determined by employee's Supervisor with due regard to the interest of the employee and the orderly performance and continuity of District services.

6.4 Separation of Service

Any employee separated from the service of District shall receive pay for all accumulated PTO on the same day as their separation from service, unless the employee elects to receive payment over time pursuant to said Section. The amount of payment for unused accumulated PTO shall be calculated based upon the employee's base hourly rate of pay in effect for the employee's regular job on the last working day of the employee's service.

6.5 Pregnancy Disability Leave

Female employees who are disabled on account of pregnancy, childbirth, or related conditions may take a Pregnancy Disability Leave for a period of actual disability as certified by employee's health care provider. To be eligible employees must have timely submitted medical certification. This unpaid leave provides up to four months (which equates to 17-1/3 work weeks for full-time employees) of job protected time off. For employees whose hours vary from month to month, the job protection period will be based on a monthly four month average of the hours worked prior to commencing leave.

Employees may elect to use their accrued paid time off during their Pregnancy Disability Leave. The substitution of any paid leave will not extend the duration of your pregnancy disability leave.

Employees who are granted leaves for pregnancy will be returned to their same position to the extent required by state law. District will provide reasonable accommodations, such as transfer to a less strenuous or hazardous position or hazardous duties, to the extent required by law and by medical certification, for conditions related to pregnancy, childbirth or related medical conditions.

Employees must give District at least thirty days' advance notice when the need for pregnancy-related disability leave, reasonable accommodation, or transfer is foreseeable. Otherwise employees must give District notice as soon as is practicable if the need is an emergency or unforeseeable.

District will continue to pay its usual portion of the employee's District-sponsored medical insurance during the Pregnancy Disability Leave for up to four months. District complies with applicable laws regarding continuation coverage and termination of insurance coverage. District may recover premiums it paid during an employee's Pregnancy Disability Leave if the employee fails to return from leave so long as the failure is not because the employee is unable to work because of continuing medical issues relating to pregnancy or other circumstances beyond her control.

6.6 Family Medical Leave/California Family Rights Act

District will grant job protected unpaid family and medical leave to eligible employees for up to twelve weeks (continuous or cumulative), per twelve month calendar year period for any one or more of the following reasons:

- a. The birth of a child and in order to care for such child or the placement of a child with the employee for adoption or foster care (leave for this reason must be taken within the twelve month period following the child's birth or placement with the employee); or
- b. In order to care for an immediate family member (spouse, domestic partner, child, or parent) of the employee if such immediate family member has a serious health condition; or
- c. The employee's own serious health condition that makes the employee unable to perform the functions of his/her position.

Conditions covering the leave shall include the following:

- Eligible employee means having been employed by District for twelve months and has actually worked for at least 1,250 hours during the twelve month period immediately preceding the commencement of the leave;
- b. Employees are required to provide District with medical verification supported by a certification from the health care provider for any leave taken relative to this Section.
- c. Employees are required to give at least thirty days written notice in the event of a foreseeable leave. In unexpected or unforeseeable situations, an employee should provide as much written notice as is practicable.
- d. Employees are required to use PTO as a part of the family leave period. Use of sick leave is not required, but may be used pursuant to the applicable provisions of this MOU.
- e. Pregnancy disability is not covered under this Section (see Section 6.5 Pregnancy Disability Leave, of this MOU).
- f. Employees retain "employee" status while on Family Medical Leave. The leave does not constitute a break in service for purposes of longevity, and/or seniority. Upon return to work, employee will be reinstated to an equivalent position with equivalent pay and benefits.

g. Any request for additional leave may be made pursuant to Section 6.11, Authorized Leave Without Pay, of this MOU.

6.7 Failure to Return

Any employee who fails to return to duty at the time specified on application of PTO, Pregnancy Disability Leave, administrative, or other leaves of absence shall be considered to have resigned from service with District in the absence of evidence of extenuating circumstances.

6.8 Workers' Compensation

- a. <u>Provision.</u> For all employees covered by this MOU District shall provide Workers Compensation Insurance in accordance with State of California law.
- b. <u>Notification.</u> Any employee who is injured on the job or becomes ill from job-related causes shall be responsible for notifying Human Resources at the earliest opportunity.
- c. <u>Benefits.</u> Any employee who suffers bodily injury or illness occurring in the course and scope of employment as contemplated by the Worker's Compensation Law of the State of California shall be entitled to benefits as provided by that Law. If the employee wishes to go to their own doctor, the employee must have a fully executed copy of District's Pre-Injury Personal Physician Pre-Designation of Work Related Injury Form placed in the employee's District personnel file before an injury occurs. Said form shall indicate the name, address and phone number of the physician. If said form is not in the file, the employee must go to the employer's doctor for the first thirty days.
- d. <u>Leaves of Absence.</u> A leave of absence for an industrial injury or illness shall not be considered a break in service. Employees paid disability compensation as stipulated by California State Law will be allowed to supplement such compensation to full base salary with accrued PTO or compensatory time off.

6.9 Holidays

a. Approved Holidays. The following shall be paid holidays:

December 31, the day before New Year's Day

New Year's Day, January 1

Martin Luther King's Birthday, third Monday in January

President's Day, third Monday in February

Memorial Day, last Monday in May

Independence Day, July 4

Labor Day, first Monday in September

Veteran's Day, November 11

Thanksgiving Day, fourth Thursday in November

Friday after Thanksgiving

Day before Christmas, December 24

Christmas Day, December 25

Additionally, each employee will receive one floating holiday per calendar year (January 1 through December 31). The floating holiday must be used during the respective calendar year. Any unused floating holiday time will be forfeited by the employee at the end of each calendar year.

b. <u>Holiday Observance.</u> When an approved holiday falls on a Saturday, the holiday will be observed on the preceding Friday. If the holiday falls on a Sunday, the holiday will be observed on the following Monday. District Office may observe additional State or local holidays as established pursuant to Government Code Section 6700 if approved by Board of Directors.

The following rules shall apply in conjunction with the December 24-25 and December 31-January 1 holiday periods:

- 1. When December 25 or January 1 fall on a Saturday, the previous Thursday and Friday shall be observed and credited as holidays.
- 2. When December 25 or January 1 fall on a Sunday, the previous Friday and following Monday shall be observed and credited as holidays.
- 3. When December 25 or January 1 fall on a Monday, the following Tuesday shall be observed and credited as a holiday.
- c. <u>PTO.</u> In the event an approved holiday occurs during the period an employee is on authorized PTO or compensatory time off, such holiday shall be considered as a holiday and shall not be counted as part of the employee's PTO or compensatory time off.

6.10 Unauthorized Leave

Unauthorized leave is leave without authorized approval. No benefits shall accrue during a period of unauthorized leave.

6.11 Authorized Leave Without Pay

Authorized leave is without pay and benefits, except as provided within this MOU, and may be granted by District Manager for a period not to exceed six calendar months during any twenty-four month consecutive period unless otherwise approved by District Manager due to extenuating circumstances. No authorized leave shall be granted except upon written request by the employee to District Manager setting forth the reasons for the requested leave. During the first three months of said authorized leave, for all employees covered by this MOU and eligible for group medical, group vision, group dental and group life insurance, the employee shall be eligible to maintain group medical coverage pursuant to California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS) rules and regulations. Employees granted authorized leave who wish to continue group medical insurance

coverage while in a non-pay status shall be required to submit to CalPERS a Direct Payment Authorization Form, and make group medical insurance premium payments directly to CalPERS. District shall reimburse the employee for the actual cost of said group medical insurance premium payments in accordance with applicable provisions of this Section. District shall maintain and pay all premium costs associated with the employee portion of coverage for group vision, group dental and group life insurance programs. Solely for the purpose of this Section, the premium costs for the employee's dependent(s) portion of coverage associated with said aforementioned group insurance programs shall be the sole responsibility of the employee granted authorized leave.

In addition, during the first six months of said authorized leave, for all employees covered by this MOU and eligible for long term disability insurance program, District shall maintain and pay the premium cost of the long term disability insurance program.

PTO and all other benefits as defined within this MOU shall not accrue during authorized leave unless explicitly stated to the contrary within this Section. Time spent on authorized leave shall not be considered as time worked relative to advancement in job classifications, pay levels, longevity, or probationary period.

6.12 Military Leave

Military Leave and regulations for payment pertaining thereto, shall be in accordance with the provisions of all applicable State and Federal Military Leave Codes.

6.13 Jury Duty/Court Leave

Jury Duty and/or time to appear in a legal proceeding pursuant to a subpoena for testimony will be granted without any loss of credit for other leaves of absence or credit for the employee's length of service. All employees covered by this MOU shall be required to notify their immediate supervisor in advance, at the earliest opportunity, of the need for time off due to jury duty and/or due to being served with a subpoena for testimony in a legal proceeding. A copy of the jury summons or subpoena shall accompany the employee's request for time off. The employee will be required to produce a certificate from the court which shows the actual dates of attendance and an itemized account of any compensation received for such service. The employee will receive their base hourly rate of pay; however, any compensation received for jury duty and/or court leave by the employee from the court system shall be turned over to District. It is the employee's responsibility to report for work if released from jury duty or to comply with a subpoena prior to the end of the normal work day.

6.14 Catastrophic Leave Program

The purpose of the Catastrophic Leave Program is to permit salary and benefit continuation for employees covered by this MOU who have exhausted all paid leave due to their own serious illness or injury. With the approval of District Manager any regular status employees may contribute prior accumulated PTO time in hourly units to any other employee for use in a catastrophic situation. The annual maximum donation during any calendar year period (January 1-December 31) shall be 50% of the donor's PTO balance at the time of transfer.

SECTION 7 - INSURANCE

7.1 Life Insurance

During the term of this MOU District shall provide each active full time regular employment status employee covered by this MOU with a paid \$50,000 group life insurance policy. District reserves the right to provide this group insurance through a self-insurance plan or a policy through an insurance company selected by District.

7.2 CalPERS Group Medical Insurance

During the term of this MOU District shall maintain a group medical insurance policy in accordance with the provision of this Section for each active full time regular employment status employee covered by this MOU and covered employee dependents as defined in Section 7.6, Covered Employees and Dependents, of this MOU. District will provide medical insurance through the CalPERS.

District will pay a percentage of Group Medical Insurance premium as follows:

Employee Only	100% of Anthem HMO Select
Employee +1 Dependent	90% of Anthem HMO Select
Employee +2 or More Dependents	90% of Anthem HMO Select

Each employee covered by this MOU shall have the option, which may be exercised no more frequently than once each calendar year during an "open" enrollment period as determined by CalPERS and/or District, to select any medical plan provided by CalPERS. Employees who select a different group medical insurance plan other than Anthem HMO Select shall pay the difference between District percentage and actual Basic Monthly Rate of selected plan.

Employees may elect not to be covered by the CalPERS medical insurance plan, provided they provide proof to District of dual coverage from CalPERS or other approved medical coverage. Employees who decline medical insurance coverage will be eligible to receive \$175.00 per month from the aforementioned optional pretax benefits and/or a taxable cash out benefit.

7.3 Group Vision Insurance

During the term of this MOU District shall maintain a group vision insurance policy and shall pay all premium costs for each active full time regular employment status employee covered by this MOU and covered employee dependents as defined in Section 7.6, Covered Employees and Dependents, of this MOU. District reserves the right to provide this group insurance through a self-insurance plan or a policy through an insurance company selected by District.

7.4 Group Dental Insurance

During the term of this MOU District shall maintain a group dental insurance policy and shall pay all premium costs for each active full time regular employment status employee covered by this MOU and covered employee dependents as defined in Section 7.6, Covered Employees and Dependents, of this MOU. District reserves the right to provide this group insurance through a self-insurance plan or a policy through an insurance company selected by District.

7.5 Long-Term Disability Insurance

For all employees covered by this MOU, District shall pay all costs of a long-term disability insurance program. The long-term disability insurance shall be provided on the same terms as other insurance benefits.

7.6 Covered Employees and Dependents

For the purpose of medical, dental and vision insurance and all other plans providing dependent coverage, an employee's dependents shall be defined by the evidence of coverage as provided by the applicable insurance carrier.

7.7 Retired Employee Medical Insurance

Effective from the date of final approval of this MOU by the Board of Directors of the San Lorenzo Valley Water District, all employees covered by this MOU who retire under the provisions of District's retirement plan contract with CalPERS, said employees are currently eligible to continue CalPERS Medical plan coverage. District will provide a medical premium contribution for those retirees who are covered by the CalPERS medical plan in accordance with the following schedule of service with District:

Less Than 15 Years of Service	\$225.00
15 to 24 Years of Service	\$275.00
25+ Years of Service	\$325.00

7.8 Miscellaneous

The failure of any insurance carrier to provide any benefit for which is has contracted shall result in no liability to District.

7.9 Interviewing Committee

A Union representative shall be a member of the Interviewing Committee to recommend medical and dental insurance and retirement programs.

SECTION 8 – OTHER BENEFITS

8.1 Social Security (FICA)

Each employee covered by this MOU shall pay that employee's share of the contribution to FICA.

8.2 CalPERS Retirement Contribution

During the term of this MOU, District may notify the Union in writing of any mandated CalPERS pension reform requirements that necessitate a change to this MOU. In the event of a CalPERS change, the parties agree to meet and discuss the effects of the change. District shall make subsequent change to this MOU.

Tier 1

District shall maintain California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS) benefits for classic employees covered by this MOU who are first employed by District or other qualified CalPERS agency before effective date of the CalPERS contract amendment discussed in Tier 2 below, based upon the 2% @ 55 benefit formula. The formula shall be based on a three year average salary. Employees covered by this MOU shall be responsible for the full 7% CalPERS member contribution. District shall pay 0%.

Tier 2

Effective January 1, 2013, District has amended its agreement with California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS) to implement the retirement formula under Government Code Section 21535 (2% @ 62) for miscellaneous employees. The formula shall be based upon a three year average salary. These changes shall apply to all new CalPERS members' miscellaneous eligible employees. All employees covered by this MOU shall be responsible for the full 7% CalPERS member contribution. District shall pay 0%.

8.3 Deferred Compensation

Any employee of District may, on a voluntary basis, enroll in a deferred compensation program offered through approved District providers. An amount specified by the employee will be deducted from the employee's earnings each pay period and placed into the deferred compensation plan until such time as the employee leaves the services of District either by separation of service or service retirement.

8.4 Supplemental Group Life Insurance

Any employee of District may, on a voluntary basis, enroll in a supplemental group life insurance program. Upon written approval of the employee an amount specified by the employee will be deducted from the employee's earnings each pay period and placed into a supplemental group life insurance program until such time as the employee leaves the service of District either by separation of service or service retirement.

8.5 Uniform/Safety Shoe Allowance

The District will provide a Uniform Allowance of up to \$800.00 per fiscal year for employees who are required to wear District approved uniforms and safety shoes. District uniforms shall consist solely of clothing articles approved by the District Manager and shall include, but not be limited to blue denim pants, work appropriate shorts, shirts, jackets, hats and outerwear. The District will provide two hats per fiscal year.

District uniforms and safety shoes will be approved by the District Manager, and employees are responsible for laundering their uniform articles. Employees who are

required to wear a District approved uniform shall be responsible for reporting to work in a clean and neat fashion and maintain a serviceable uniform.

The following position classifications covered by this MOU are required to wear District approved uniforms and safety shoes:

Electrician/Instrumentation Technician I/II

Field Customer Service Representative I/II

Field Services and System Coordinator

Field Service Worker I/II

Senior Field Services Worker

Water Treatment and System Operator

All position classifications covered by this MOU that are not required to wear a District approved uniform and safety shoes shall be provided an allowance of up to \$150.00 for the term of this MOU for the purchase of safety shoes.

Clothing that qualifies as Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) (other than safety shoes) and is necessary for the employee's job classification shall be purchased by the District for each employee's use. PPE clothing shall be agreed upon by the District and the employee prior to purchase.

Shirts, sweatshirts, and hats purchased that include the District logo are non-taxable and any allowances provided for the purchase of such uniform items are reportable to CalPERS. Allowances provided for shorts and jeans shall be included in the employee's taxable income, but are not reportable to CalPERS. Allowances provided for the purchase of safety boots are non-taxable and not reportable to CalPERS.

The aforementioned uniform allowance for new hires shall be prorated on a month-bymonth basis. District issued uniforms shall be considered District property, and the District Manager will determine if District uniforms are presentable. Any employee observed in unpresentable uniform clothing shall be required to immediately change into acceptable attire on the employee's own time in the absence of evidence of extenuating circumstances.

8.6 Food Cost Reimbursement

All employees covered by this MOU shall be entitled to a reimbursement for food costs not to exceed \$15.00 in the following circumstances: 1) after working twelve or more hours on a regular work day; and 2) after working in excess of four hours on a day that is not a regularly scheduled work day. Receipts shall be submitted along with an expense report to District Manager for approval prior to reimbursement.

8.7 Flexible Spending Account

Subject to all applicable Internal Revenue Service guidelines and any and all other federal, state and/or local laws or regulations regarding the administration of such flexible spending plans, District will establish and maintain a flexible spending plan which allows employees covered by this MOU the option to set aside a pretax salary reduction for applicable eligible benefits. It is understood that if a third party administration is retained to provide said service, any service or administration fees will be mutually agreed upon by both parties. District retains the right to select and change the third party administrator as necessary.

SECTION 9 - DISCIPLINARY ACTION

9.1 Disciplinary Action

District may take disciplinary action for just cause against any employee who has completed their probationary period by notifying the employee of the action in writing. Employees who have not completed their probationary period pursuant to Section 3.4, Probationary Period, of this MOU, may be terminated at any time for any cause, without prior notice and without right of grievance, hearing or appeal. Notification of intended disciplinary action must be in writing and served on the employee in person or by registered mail at least 72 hours prior to effective date of the intended disciplinary action, except in an emergency situation, unless otherwise mutually agreed to by the parties. The notice must be included in the employee's personnel file, and shall include the following:

- a. <u>Nature of Action.</u> A statement of the nature of the disciplinary action. Disciplinary action is defined as demotion, discharge, reduction in pay, letters of reprimand and/or suspension.
- b. <u>Effective Date.</u> The effective date of action, which shall be at least 72 hours after notice of intended discipline, is served on the employee, except in an emergency situation.
- c. <u>Basis for Action.</u> A statement in ordinary and concise language of the act or the omissions upon which the disciplinary action is based.
- d. <u>Representation.</u> A statement that any employee may be represented by any representative of the employee's choosing relative to disciplinary action. The employee shall provide written notice relative to designated representative.
- e. <u>Entitlement to Meet with District Manager.</u> A statement that the employee has the right to respond orally or in writing to the charges prior to said disciplinary action being taken. The employee shall advise District Manager of the request for a meeting within 72 hours after receiving the notice. If, at the employee's option, there is no meeting, District Manager shall advise the employee in writing within five calendar days after the 72 hour period expires, of his/her decision regarding the intended disciplinary action.

SECTION 10 – GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

10.1 Purpose

The purpose of this grievance procedure is to provide the employee with a prompt and effective procedure that will facilitate a successful resolution of problems that may arise during the course of employment.

10.2 Definition

A grievance is defined as a dispute or an allegation by an employee or a group of employees with respect to a single common issue against District alleging that an expressed written provision of this MOU has been violated, misinterpreted or misapplied.

10.3 Representation

Grievant(s) may be represented by any representative of the grievant's(s') choosing in presenting a grievance. The employee(s) shall provide their immediate Supervisor or District Manager with advanced written notice relative to designated representation pursuant to grievance procedures.

10.4 Time Limitations

No grievance shall be entertained or processed unless said grievance is filed in writing pursuant to Section 10.5, Step One-Informal Procedure, of this MOU, within forty-five calendar days after the date of the occurrence or forty-five calendar days after the concerned employee(s) became aware of, or should have been reasonably expected to have become aware of, the events giving rise to or surrounding the alleged grievance.

If a grievance is not presented within the time limits set forth in this Section, it shall be rejected and not processed further. If a grievance is not appealed to the next step of the grievance procedure within the specified time limit or any mutually agreeable extension thereof, said grievance shall be considered settled on the basis of the last answer.

10.5 Step One – Informal Procedure

Before proceeding to the formal grievance procedures any employees covered by this MOU shall act promptly through an informal meeting with their immediate Supervisor to discuss and attempt to resolve the matter before it becomes the basis for a formal written grievance reduced to writing. Any resolution reached at this informal procedure must be in accordance with the provisions of this MOU. The time limitations specified in Section 10.4, Time Limitations, of this MOU shall include all time expended during this informal procedure.

10.6 Step Two

Any employee(s) covered by this MOU who has a grievance shall submit it immediately to District Manager. The grievance shall be in writing, signed by the aggrieved employee(s), and shall contain the following information:

- a. The name of the grievant(s).
- b. Specific nature of the grievance.
- c. The date, time and place of occurrence.

- d. Specific provision(s) of this MOU alleged to have been violated, misinterpreted or misapplied.
- e. Steps, if any, taken to secure informal resolution.
- f. The corrective action desired.
- g. The name of any person or representative chosen by the employee to enter grievance.

District Manager shall make a decision regarding the grievance and shall provide the employee(s) and the Union with a written notice of such decision within fourteen calendar days after presentation of the grievance.

10.7 Step Three

If the grievance is not settled and the employee(s) wishes to appeal the grievance to the Board of Directors, it shall be referred in writing to the Board within fourteen calendar days of District Manager's written decision. Appeals to the Board shall be in writing, signed by the aggrieved employee(s) and explain the matter appealed, setting forth a statement of desired corrective action. The Board of Directors shall make a decision and shall provide the employee(s) and the Union with a written notice of such decision within twenty-one calendar days.

10.8 Arbitration

If the grievance is not settled in accordance with the foregoing procedures, the employee(s) may appeal the matter within fourteen calendar days to the California State Conciliation Service or other service mutually agreed to by both parties. Appeals shall be filed in writing with the California State Conciliation Service and a written copy thereof served at the same time and manner on District Manager. Upon receipt of a written request for arbitration, District and Union shall select a mutually agreeable impartial arbitrator. Within ten calendar days after receipt of the written request for arbitration, either party may request the State Mediation and Conciliation Service to submit a list of nine representative arbitrators. Each party may alternatively scratch names from the list, the first scratch being elected by lot, and the person remaining after each party has scratched four names shall be the arbitrator. It is the intent of the parties that the selection process shall be completed within thirty calendar days of the receipt of the written request for arbitration.

10.9 Limitations on Authority of Arbitrator

The purpose of this Section is to allow the arbitrator to act in a judicial, not legislative, capacity to interpret the meanings of this MOU. The arbitrator shall not render findings different from the MOU, ordinances and/or resolutions. The arbitrator shall have no right to amend, modify, nullify, ignore, add to and/or subtract from the provisions of this MOU, District resolutions or District ordinances. The arbitrator shall consider and decide only the question of fact as to whether there has been a violation, misinterpretation and/or misapplication of the specific provisions of this MOU. The arbitrator shall only consider and make a decision with respect to the specific issue(s) submitted, and shall have no authority to make a decision on any other issue(s) which has not been submitted. The arbitrator shall be without power to make any decision or award which is contrary to or inconsistent with in any way, any applicable laws or rules and regulations of administrative

bodies that have the force and effect of law. The arbitrator shall submit in writing a decision within thirty calendar days following close of the hearing, or the submission of briefs by the parties, whichever is later, unless the parties mutually agree to a written extension thereof. The decision shall be based solely upon the arbitrator's interpretation of the meaning or application of the express terms of the MOU to the facts of the grievance. Any decision or award of the arbitrator rendered within the limitations of this Section shall be final and binding upon District and employee(s) covered by this MOU.

10.10 Payment for Arbitrator

The fee and expense of the arbitrator and the cost of a written transcript for the arbitrator shall be divided equally between District and the employee(s); provided, however, that each party shall be responsible for compensating its own representatives and witnesses, and purchasing its own copy of the written transcript. The employee(s) shall make their one-half payment within fourteen calendar days of District's payment. If the arbitrator renders findings for the employee(s), District shall pay the full amount of the arbitration fees.

SECTION 11 – SEPARATION OF SERVICE

11.1 Termination by Employer

District Manager shall have full power and authority to discharge for just cause of any employee.

11.2 Termination by Employee, Adequate Notice

Any employee covered by this MOU wishing to leave the service of District in good standing shall file a written resignation with District Manager at least fourteen calendar days before leaving the service of District. Such resignation shall state the effective date and reason for leaving.

SECTION 12 - STANDBY DUTY ASSIGNMENT

12.1 Definition

Standby duty is defined as assignment to an "on-call" status for a specified period of time. The purpose of standby duty is to provide twenty-four hours a day reliability for customer service, monitoring and operation of the water and wastewater systems, emergency call outside regularly scheduled working hours and other important duties as determined by District.

12.2 Standby Duty Assignment

District will require field personnel to perform standby duty assignment for their respective department; Water Quality or Distribution. The Operations Manager will be responsible for assigning standby duty for the respective departments. The Operations Manager will determine which department employees are qualified for standby duty assignment based upon skills, qualifications and ability to perform the work. Standby duty shall be assigned on a weekly rotational basis from a list established by the Operations Manager consisting of, but not limited to, qualified volunteers. A voluntary rotational process will be the preferred method of standby duty assignment selection; however, District may assign

mandatory standby duty assignment if there are insufficient qualified volunteers as determined by the Operations Manager. Standby duty shall be rotated as equally as possible among all qualified department employees who volunteer for standby duty assignment. Qualified employees from another department may perform standby duties for said department upon approval of the Operations Manager. Standby duty assignment between departments shall not overlap and shall not be assigned back-to-back.

12.3 Standby Duty Period

Standby duty shall normally be assigned for a period of seven consecutive days from 5:00 p.m. Wednesday to 5:00 p.m. on the following Wednesday. Standby duty shall not overlap the employee's regularly assigned work schedule. Standby duty may be assigned for periods of time other than the normal seven day period as determined by District, but in no event shall standby duty be assigned for a period of time less than twenty-four hours, unless otherwise approved by the Supervisor.

12.4 Standby Duty Requirements

Standby duty requires that employees so assigned shall confirm to the following conditions:

- a. Report to work fit for duty, at any time, at District Operations Building, 13057 Highway 9, Boulder Creek, within sixty minutes of notification.
- b. Refrain from activities which might prohibit the employee's abilities to perform assigned duties.
- c. Continuously carry District provided phone and respond to District by telephone, radio or other telecommuting device.

In the absence of extenuating circumstances, any employee on standby duty assignment who fails to comply with these conditions shall not receive standby compensation for the assigned standby assignment period and may be subject to disciplinary actions.

12.5 Change in Schedule

Employees assigned standby duty shall be permitted to obtain replacement coverage for their required standby duty assignment from among other qualified employees. Any change made to the assigned standby duty schedule must be approved in advance by the Department Head or in the absence of the Department Head, District Manager.

12.6 Sickness or Emergency

In the event of sickness or unexpected emergency causing an employee to be unavailable for a scheduled standby duty assignment, when no other personnel is available to take the unavailable employee's standby duty period, the next regularly scheduled standby duty employee shall take the standby duty assignment until the scheduled standby duty employee returns to work. In the event, the regularly scheduled standby duty employee who was unavailable for duty shall take the next regularly scheduled standby duty period of the employee who assumed their standby duty assignment or as assigned by the Department Head.

12.7 Standby Duty Compensation

Each department standby duty assignment (one for Water Quality and one for Distribution) shall be compensated at the rate of fourteen hours of base hourly rate of pay for the employee's regular job for a normal seven-day standby duty assignment period. Standby duty assignment for periods of time other than the normal seven day period shall be compensated on a prorated basis at the rate of one and a half hours of base hourly rate of pay for the employee's regular job for each twenty-four hours of standby duty assignment.

It is understood that standby duty compensation pursuant to this Section shall include and represent complete compensation for all telecommuting activities performed while on standby duty assignment. Telecommuting shall be defined as a response by computer, telephone or other device from the employee's residence or other off duty location which does not require a physical return to duty. Solely for the purpose of this Section, return to duty is defined as an event whereby an employee is required to physically return to a work site location (e.g. leave home or other off duty work location) in order to perform required duties. When an employee on standby duty assignment is required to physically return to duty, said employee shall be compensated from the time the employee leaves the residence or other off duty location, until the time the employee returns to their residence upon completion of the job duties; or, should the employee not return to their residence, upon completion of the job duties, whichever occurs first.

When an employee on standby duty assignment is required to physically return to work said employee shall be compensated with a minimum of two hours pay at the rate of one and one-half times the employee's base hourly rate of pay or one and one-half times the actual hours worked, whichever is greater. There shall not be any duplication or pyramiding of payment under this Section. An employee shall not be credited with more than one 2-hour minimum guarantee for work performed during any two-hour period. See Section 4.20, Call Back Pay, of this MOU.

SECTION 13 – BENEFITS FOR REGULAR PART-TIME EMPLOYEES

13.1 Regular Part-Time Employees

Part-time regular employment status employees who are scheduled to work twenty hours or more per week will be eligible for and shall receive the various benefits provided for in this MOU as follows:

a. <u>Leaves and Holidays</u>

PTO and holiday benefits shall be determined on a pro-rata time basis taking into account the employee's number of regularly scheduled hours of work per week.

b. Insurance

Regular part-time employees shall receive no insurance benefits.

13.2 Advancement of Pay Levels Regular Part-Time Employees

Regular part-time employees shall be eligible for consideration for advancement in pay levels in accordance with Section 4.3, Advancement of Pay Levels, of this MOU, based upon merit and a pro-rata time basis taking into account the employee's number of regularly scheduled hours of work per week.

SECTION 14 - TIME TABLE FOR SUBMISSION OF REQUESTS

14.1 Priority of Negotiations

The Union has the right to expect the Employee Relations Officer to give high priority to these negotiations to ensure that employees are continuously covered by a MOU. If by mutual consent negotiations are delayed, District and all employees covered by this MOU will continue to adhere to the last enacted MOU.

SECTION 15 - MISCELLANEOUS

15.1 Outside Employment

In the event an employee covered by this MOU is self-employed or accepts employment other than District which affects their duties under the terms of this MOU, said employee shall be considered to have resigned from the service of District in the absence of evidence of extenuating circumstance. A leave of absence will not be granted to enable an employee to accept employment elsewhere or for self-employment.

15.2 CalPERS Pre-Tax Payroll Deduction Plan

Pursuant to all applicable CalPERS rules and regulations, District agrees to initiate a request to participate in the CalPERS Pre-Tax Payroll Deduction Plan for service credit purchase(s). It is expressly understood by both parties that authorization and approval of said plan is the jurisdiction of CalPERS.

15.3 Subcontracting

It is the general policy of District to continue to utilize its employees to perform work they are qualified to perform. However, District reserves the right to contract out any work it deems necessary in the interests of efficiency, economy, and improved work product or emergency. Except where an emergency situation exists, before District changes its policy involving the overall subcontracting of work in a general area, where such policy change amounts to a significant deviation from past practice which shall result in the loss of employment for employees covered by this MOU, District will notify the Union and offer Union an opportunity to discuss desirability of subcontracting such work.

15.4 Reopening of MOU

During the term of this MOU either party may notify the other in writing of its desire to reopen this MOU, provided such reopening shall be solely limited to the consideration of a CalPERS contract amendment. It is understood and agreed that the parties shall discuss the shared costs associated with the implementation of any CalPERS contract amendment(s) for the modification of retirement contract coverage.

15.5 Entire MOU

This MOU which establishes and authorizes wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment for those employees in the classification of positions set forth in Appendix "A" attached hereto and incorporated within, completely supersedes and cancels all prior practices and MOU's whether written or oral, howsoever the same may be expressed, which are contrary to or in conflict with this MOU, including resolutions and ordinances of the Board of Directors, unless expressly stated to the contrary herein and this MOU is the complete and entire MOU between the parties and concludes collective bargaining for its term. The parties hereby acknowledge that during negotiation which resulted in this MOU, each party had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any subject not removed by law and that the understanding and MOU arrived at by the parties after exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in this MOU. Therefore, both parties for the duration of this MOU, each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waive the right to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or matter referred to or covered in this MOU, including the impact of District's exercise of its rights as set forth herein on wages, hours, terms and conditions of employment.

* * * END * * *

AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY, AND MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES, LOCAL 101

The p. Tuden	Ostel Lole
Jim Tucker	Dellef Adam
Business Agent	Chapter President
DATED: 1/19/17	DATED: 1-13-2017
SAN LORENZO VALLEY WATER DISTRICT	By al
	T (May)

APPENDIX "A"

CLASSIFICATIONS REPRESENTED BY UNION

Electrician/Instrumentation Technician I/II Senior Water Treatment Operator Network Specialist GIS/ Engineering Technician Water Treatment and System Operator Senior Field Services Worker Customer Service Field Representative Field Services and System Coordinator Field Services Worker II Customer Service/Account Specialist Field Services Worker I

APPENDIX "B" - SALARY TABLE

APPENDIX "B" SAN LORENZO VALLEY WATER DISTRICT CLASSIFIED EMPOYEES UNION BASE SALARY SCHEDULE EFFECTIVE AFTER JANUARY 20, 2017

	Monthly Salary								
RANGE	CLASSIFICATION	STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7	
168	Electrician / Instrumentation Technician II	\$6,179	\$6,488	\$6,812	\$7,153	\$7,510	\$7,886	\$8,280	
166	Electrician / Instrumentation Technician I	\$5,884	\$6,179	\$6,488	\$6,812	\$7,153	\$7,510	\$7,886	
163	Senior Water Treatment and System Operator	\$5,842	\$6,134	\$6,441	\$6,763	\$7,101	\$7,456	\$7,829	
159	Network Specialist	\$5,963	\$6,261	\$6,574	\$6,903	\$7,248	\$7,610	\$7,991	
148	GIS / CAD Specialist	\$5,220	\$5,481	\$5,755	\$6,043	\$6,345	\$6,662	\$6,995	
144	Water Treatment and System Operator	\$5,311	\$5,576	\$5,855	\$6,148	\$6,455	\$6,778	\$7,117	
134	Senior Field Services Worker	\$5,034	\$5,285	\$5,550	\$5,827	\$6,118	\$6,424	\$6,746	
124	Water Conservation Specialist	\$4,887	\$5,131	\$5,388	\$5,657	\$5,940	\$6,237	\$6,549	
121	Field Customer Service Representative II	\$4,700	\$4,935	\$5,182	\$5,441	\$5,713	\$5,999	\$6,298	
120	Customer Service Field Representative & Field Services and System Coordinator	\$4,691	\$4,925	\$5,171	\$5,430	\$5,701	\$5,987	\$6,286	
110	Field Services Worker II	\$4,467	\$4,690	\$4,925	\$5,171	\$5,430	\$5,701	\$5,986	
106	Field Customer Service Representative I	\$4,476	\$4,700	\$4,935	\$5,182	\$5,441	\$5,713	\$5,998	
105	Customer Service Representative II	\$4,476	\$4,700	\$4,935	\$5,182	\$5,441	\$5,713	\$5,998	
102	Accounting Clerk	\$4,263	\$4,476	\$4,700	\$4,935	\$5,182	\$5,441	\$5,713	
101	Customer Service Representative I	\$4,263	\$4,476	\$4,700	\$4,935	\$5,182	\$5,441	\$5,713	
100	Field Services Worker I	\$4,252	\$4,464	\$4,688	\$4,922	\$5,168	\$5,427	\$5,698	

Per MOU these salaries increase by 3% annually

APPENDIX "B" SAN LORENZO VALLEY WATER DISTRICT CLASSIFIED EMPOYEES UNION BASE SALARY SCHEDULE EFFECTIVE AFTER JANUARY 1, 2018

	Monthly Salary							
RANGE	CLASSIFICATION	STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7
168	Electrician / Instrumentation Technician II	\$6,364	\$6,682	\$7,016	\$7,367	\$7,735	\$8,122	\$8,528
166	Electrician / Instrumentation Technician I	\$6,061	\$6,364	\$6,682	\$7,016	\$7,367	\$7,735	\$8,122
163	Senior water Treatment and System Operator	\$6,017	\$6,318	\$6,634	\$6,966	\$7,314	\$7,680	\$8,064
159	Network Specialist	\$6,142	\$6,449	\$6,771	\$7,110	\$7,466	\$7,839	\$8,231
148	GIS / CAD Specialist	\$5,377	\$5,646	\$5,928	\$6,224	\$6,535	\$6,862	\$7,205
144	Water Treatment and System Operator	\$5,470	\$5,744	\$6,031	\$6,333	\$6,650	\$6,983	\$7,332
124	Water Conservation Specialist	\$5,034	\$5,286	\$5,550	\$5,828	\$6,119	\$6,425	\$6,746
123	Lead Field Services Worker	\$4,969	\$5,217	\$5,478	\$5,752	\$6,040	\$6,342	\$6,659
121	Field Customer Service Representative II	\$4,841	\$5,083	\$5,337	\$5,604	\$5,884	\$6,178	\$6,487
120	Customer Service Field Representative & Field Services and System Coordinator	\$4,832	\$5,074	\$5,328	\$5,594	\$5,874	\$6,168	\$6,476
110	Field Services Worker II	\$4,601	\$4,831	\$5,073	\$5,327	\$5,593	\$5,873	\$6,167
106	Field Customer Service Representative I	\$4,610	\$4,841	\$5,083	\$5,337	\$5,604	\$5,884	\$6,178
105	Customer Service Representative II	\$4,610	\$4,841	\$5,083	\$5,337	\$5,604	\$5,884	\$6,178
102	Accounting Clerk	\$4,391	\$4,611	\$4,842	\$5,084	\$5,338	\$5,605	\$5,885
101	Customer Service Representative I	\$4,391	\$4,611	\$4,842	\$5,084	\$5,338	\$5,605	\$5,885
100	Field Services Worker I	\$4,380	\$4,599	\$4,829	\$5,070	\$5,324	\$5,590	\$5,870

Per MOU dated 1/19/17, these salaries increase by 3% annually

APPENDIX "B" SAN LORENZO VALLEY WATER DISTRICT CLASSIFIED EMPOYEES UNION BASE SALARY SCHEDULE EFFECTIVE AFTER JANUARY 1, 2019

Monthly Salary RANGE CLASSIFICATION STEP 1 STEP 2 STEP 3 STEP 4 STEP 5 STEP 6 STEP 7 168 Electrician / Instrumentation Technician II \$6,555 \$6,883 \$7,227 \$7,588 \$7,967 \$8,365 \$8,783 Electrician / Instrumentation Technician I \$6,243 \$6,555 \$6,883 \$7,227 \$7,588 \$7,967 \$8,365 166 \$6,508 \$7,175 \$7,911 \$8,307 163 Senior water Treatment and System Operator \$6,198 \$6,833 \$7,534 **Environmental Planner** \$6,426 \$6,747 \$7,084 \$7,438 \$7,810 \$8,201 161 \$6,120 159 Network Specialist \$6,326 \$6,642 \$6,974 \$7,323 \$7,689 \$8,073 \$8,477 \$5,815 \$6,411 \$7,069 \$7,422 148 GIS / CAD Specialist \$5,538 \$6,106 \$6,732 \$5,916 \$6,523 \$7,191 \$7,551 144 Water Treatment and System Operator \$5,634 \$6,212 \$6,849 124 Water Conservation Specialist \$5,185 \$5,444 \$5,716 \$6,002 \$6,302 \$6,617 \$6,948 123 Lead Field Services Worker \$5,118 \$5,374 \$5,643 \$5,925 \$6,221 \$6,532 \$6,859 Field Customer Service Representative II \$5,235 \$5,497 \$5,772 \$6,364 \$6,682 121 \$4,986 \$6,061 \$6,351 120 Customer Service Field Representative & Field Services and System Coordinator \$4,977 \$5,226 \$5,487 \$5,761 \$6,049 \$6,669 Field Services Worker II \$6,048 110 \$4,739 \$4,976 \$5,225 \$5,486 \$5,760 \$6,350 106 Field Customer Service Representative I \$4,748 \$4,985 \$5,234 \$5,496 \$5,771 \$6,060 \$6,363 Customer Service Representative II \$4,985 \$5,234 \$5,496 \$5,771 \$6,060 \$6,363 105 \$4,748 \$4,749 \$5,235 \$5,772 102 \$4,523 \$4,986 \$5,497 \$6,061 Accounting Clerk 101 Customer Service Representative I \$4,523 \$4,749 \$4,986 \$5,235 \$5,497 \$5,772 \$6,061 Field Services Worker I \$4,511 \$4,737 \$4,974 \$5,223 \$5,484 \$5,758 \$6,046 100

Per MOU dated 1/19/17, these salaries increase by 3% annually

APPENDIX "B" SAN LORENZO VALLEY WATER DISTRICT CLASSIFIED EMPOYEES UNION BASE SALARY SCHEDULE EFFECTIVE AFTER JANUARY 1, 2020

	Monthly Salary							
RANGE	CLASSIFICATION	STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7
168	Electrician / Instrumentation Technician II	\$6,752	\$7,089	\$7,444	\$7,816	\$8,206	\$8,616	\$9,046
166	Electrician / Instrumentation Technician I	\$6,430	\$6,752	\$7,089	\$7,444	\$7,816	\$8,206	\$8,616
163	Senior water Treatment and System Operator	\$6,384	\$6,703	\$7,038	\$7,390	\$7,760	\$8,148	\$8,556
161	Environmental Planner	\$6,304	\$6,619	\$6,949	\$7,297	\$7,661	\$8,044	\$8,447
159	Network Specialist	\$6,516	\$6,841	\$7,183	\$7,543	\$7,920	\$8,315	\$8,731
150	Assistant Engineer	\$5,768	\$6,056	\$6,359	\$6,677	\$7,011	\$7,361	\$7,729
148	GIS / CAD Specialist	\$5,704	\$5,989	\$6,289	\$6,603	\$6,934	\$7,281	\$7,645
144	Water Treatment and System Operator	\$5,803	\$6,093	\$6,398	\$6,718	\$7,054	\$7,407	\$7,778
124	Water Conservation Specialist	\$5,341	\$5,607	\$5,887	\$6,182	\$6,491	\$6,816	\$7,156
123	Lead Field Services Worker	\$5,272	\$5,535	\$5,812	\$6,103	\$6,408	\$6,728	\$7,065
121	Field Customer Service Representative II	\$5,136	\$5,392	\$5,662	\$5,945	\$6,243	\$6,555	\$6,882
120	Customer Service Field Representative & Field Services and System Coordinator	\$5,126	\$5,383	\$5,652	\$5,934	\$6,231	\$6,542	\$6,869
110	Field Services Worker II	\$4,881	\$5,125	\$5,382	\$5,651	\$5,933	\$6,230	\$6,541
106	Field Customer Service Representative I	\$4,890	\$5,134	\$5,391	\$5,661	\$5,944	\$6,242	\$6,554
105	Customer Service Representative II	\$4,890	\$5,134	\$5,391	\$5,661	\$5,944	\$6,242	\$6,554
102	Accounting Clerk	\$4,659	\$4,891	\$5,136	\$5,392	\$5,662	\$5,945	\$6,242
101	Customer Service Representative I	\$4,659	\$4,891	\$5,136	\$5,392	\$5,662	\$5,945	\$6,242
100	Field Services Worker I	\$4,646	\$4,879	\$5,123	\$5,380	\$5,649	\$5,931	\$6,227

Per MOU dated 1/19/17, these salaries increase by 3% annually

APPENDIX "B" SAN LORENZO VALLEY WATER DISTRICT CLASSIFIED EMPOYEES UNION

BASE SALARY SCHEDULE EFFECTIVE AFTER JANUARY 1, 2021

	Month	nly Salary						
RANGE	CLASSIFICATION	STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7
168	Electrician / Instrumentation Technician II	\$6,954	\$7,302	\$7,667	\$8,050	\$8,452	\$8,875	\$9,318
166	Electrician / Instrumentation Technician I	\$6,623	\$6,954	\$7,302	\$7,667	\$8,050	\$8,452	\$8,875
163	Senior water Treatment and System Operator	\$6,576	\$6,905	\$7,250	\$7,613	\$7,993	\$8,393	\$8,813
161	Environmental Planner	\$6,493	\$6,817	\$7,158	\$7,516	\$7,891	\$8,286	\$8,700
159	Network Specialist	\$6,711	\$7,047	\$7,399	\$7,769	\$8,157	\$8,565	\$8,993
150	Assistant Engineer	\$5,941	\$6,238	\$6,550	\$6,877	\$7,221	\$7,582	\$7,961
148	GIS / CAD Specialist	\$5,875	\$6,169	\$6,477	\$6,801	\$7,141	\$7,498	\$7,874
144	Water Treatment and System Operator	\$5,977	\$6,276	\$6,590	\$6,920	\$7,266	\$7,629	\$8,010
124	Water Conservation Specialist	\$5,501	\$5,776	\$6,064	\$6,367	\$6,686	\$7,020	\$7,371
123	Lead Field Services Worker	\$5,430	\$5,701	\$5,986	\$6,286	\$6,600	\$6,930	\$7,277
121	Field Customer Service Representative II	\$5,290	\$5,554	\$5,832	\$6,124	\$6,430	\$6,752	\$7,089
120	Customer Service Field Representative & Field Services and System Coordinator	\$5,280	\$5,544	\$5,821	\$6,112	\$6,418	\$6,739	\$7,076
110	Field Services Worker II	\$5,027	\$5,278	\$5,542	\$5,820	\$6,111	\$6,417	\$6,737
106	Field Customer Service Representative I	\$5,037	\$5,290	\$5,554	\$5,832	\$6,124	\$6,430	\$6,752
105	Customer Service Representative II	\$5,037	\$5,290	\$5,554	\$5,832	\$6,124	\$6,430	\$6,752
102	Accounting Clerk	\$4,798	\$5,038	\$5,290	\$5,554	\$5,832	\$6,124	\$6,430
101	Customer Service Representative I	\$4,798	\$5,038	\$5,290	\$5,554	\$5,832	\$6,124	\$6,430
100	Field Services Worker I	\$4,785	\$5,024	\$5,275	\$5,539	\$5,816	\$6,107	\$6,412

Per MOU dated 1/19/17, these salaries increase by 3% annually

APPENDIX "B" SAN LORENZO VALLEY WATER DISTRICT CLASSIFIED EMPOYEES UNION

BASE SALARY SCHEDULE EFFECTIVE AFTER JANUARY 1, 2022

	Monthly Salary							
RANGE	CLASSIFICATION	STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7
168	Electrician / Instrumentation Technician II	\$7,163	\$7,521	\$7,897	\$8,292	\$8,706	\$9,141	\$9,598
166	Electrician / Instrumentation Technician I	\$6,822	\$7,163	\$7,521	\$7,897	\$8,292	\$8,706	\$9,141
163	Senior Water Treatment and System Operator	\$6,773	\$7,112	\$7,467	\$7,841	\$8,233	\$8,644	\$9,077
161	Environmental Planner II	\$6,688	\$7,022	\$7,373	\$7,741	\$8,128	\$8,534	\$8,961
159	Network Specialist	\$6,912	\$7,258	\$7,621	\$8,002	\$8,402	\$8,822	\$9,263
153	Construction Inspector	\$6,119	\$6,425	\$6,746	\$7,083	\$7,438	\$7,810	\$8,200
150	Assistant Engineer	\$6,119	\$6,425	\$6,746	\$7,083	\$7,438	\$7,810	\$8,200
148	GIS / CAD Specialist	\$6,051	\$6,354	\$6,671	\$7,005	\$7,355	\$7,723	\$8,109
144	Water Treatment and System Operator	\$6,156	\$6,464	\$6,787	\$7,128	\$7,484	\$7,858	\$8,250
124	Environmental Planner I	\$5,666	\$5,949	\$6,246	\$6,558	\$6,887	\$7,231	\$7,592
123	Lead Field Services Worker	\$5,593	\$5,872	\$6,166	\$6,475	\$6,798	\$7,138	\$7,495
121	Field Customer Service Representative II	\$5,449	\$5,721	\$6,007	\$6,308	\$6,623	\$6,954	\$7,302
120	Customer Service Field Representative & Field Services and System Coordinator	\$5,438	\$5,710	\$5,996	\$6,296	\$6,611	\$6,941	\$7,288
110	Field Services Worker II	\$5,178	\$5,437	\$5,709	\$5,994	\$6,294	\$6,609	\$6,939
106	Field Customer Service Representative I	\$5,188	\$5,448	\$5,720	\$6,006	\$6,307	\$6,623	\$6,954
105	Customer Service Representative II	\$5,188	\$5,448	\$5,720	\$6,006	\$6,307	\$6,623	\$6,954
102	Accounting Clerk	\$4,942	\$5,189	\$5,449	\$5,721	\$6,007	\$6,308	\$6,623
101	Customer Service Representative I	\$4,942	\$5,189	\$5,449	\$5,721	\$6,007	\$6,308	\$6,623
100	Field Services Worker I	\$4,929	\$5,175	\$5,433	\$5,705	\$5,990	\$6,290	\$6,605

Per MOU dated 1/19/17, these salaries increase by 3% annually

APPENDIX "B" SAN LORENZO VALLEY WATER DISTRICT CLASSIFIED EMPOYEES UNION BASE SALARY SCHEDULE EFFECTIVE AFTER JANUARY 1, 2023

Monthly Salary								
RANGE	CLASSIFICATION	STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7
168	Electrician / Instrumentation Technician II	7599	7979	8378	8797	9237	9699	10184
166	Electrician / Instrumentation Technician I	7238	7600	7980	8379	8798	9237	9699
163	Senior Water Treatment and System Op	7185	7545	7922	8318	8734	9171	9629
161	Environmental Planner II	7096	7450	7823	8214	8625	9056	9509
159	Network Specialist	7333	7699	8084	8489	8914	9359	9827
153	Construction Inspector	6492	6817	7158	7515	7891	8286	8700
150	Assistant Engineer	6491	6817	7157	7515	7891	8285	8699
148	GIS / CAD Specialist	6420	6741	7078	7432	7804	8194	8603
144	Water Treatment and System Operator	6531	6858	7201	7561	7939	8336	8753
124	Environmental Planner l	6011	6312	6627	6959	7307	7672	8056
123	Lead Field Services Worker	5934	6231	6542	6869	7213	7573	7952
121	Field Customer Service Representative II	5780	6070	6374	6692	7027	7378	7747
120	Field Services and System Coordinator	5769	6057	6360	6679	7012	7363	7732
110	Field Services Worker II	5493	5768	6056	6359	6677	7011	7361
106	Field Customer Service Representative I	5504	5780	6069	6372	6691	7025	7377
105	Customer Service Representative II	5504	5780	6069	6372	6691	7025	7377
102	Accounting Clerk	5243	5505	5780	6070	6373	6692	7027
101	Customer Service Representative I	5243	5505	5780	6070	6373	6692	7027
100	Field Services Worker I	5229	5491	5765	6054	6356	6674	7008

Per MOU dated 1/19/17 and the MOU Addendum no. 1, these salaries increase by 6% in 2023



Memo

Subject: Revision of Section 8.5 in Classified MOU

Date: July 20, 2017

The District will provide a Uniform Allowance of up to \$800 per fiscal year **Detalls:**

for employees required to wear District approved uniforms and safety shoes. District uniforms include, but are not limited to blue denim pants, work appropriate shorts, shirts, jackets, and outerwear. For additional information please refer to page 32 of the MOU for Classified Employees

dated on January 19, 2017.

Signatures

APPROVED: Detlef Adam, Chapter President

7/21/17 Date

APPROVED: Carol McEwan

Addendum No. 1 to Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for the Classified Employees Union

San Lorenzo Valley Water District

May 22, 2023

This Addendum No. 1 (Addendum) to the MOU for the Classified Employees Union, dated January 19, 2017, is made and entered into by and between the San Lorenzo Valley Water District (District) and the District's Classified Employee's Union (Union). The District and the Union are referred to herein collectively as the Parties, or individually, as a Party.

The District and the Union are engaged in the process of meeting and conferring in good faith within the meaning of the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act (California Government Code Section 3500 et. seq.), regarding wages, hours and other terms and conditions of employment for those employees in the classifications of position represented by the Union in connection with the above-referenced MOU. While such meet and confer efforts are ongoing for the purpose of renewing the MOU, the Parties now wish to confirm certain interim agreements with respect to the MOU, as follows:

- The MOU shall continue in full force and effect while the Parties continue to meet and confer in good faith for the purpose of renewing the MOU. Accordingly, all terms and conditions of the MOU shall remain in full force and effect except as otherwise expressly specified herein below.
- 2. For Calendar Year 2023, all employees covered by the above-referenced MOU shall receive a cost-of-living (COLA) salary increase of six percent (6%) applied to their base salary in effect as of January 1, 2023. This COLA salary increase shall be retroactive to January 1, 2023, and the difference between a COLA of six percent (6%) and COLA already paid to the employee for 2023 under the existing MOU shall be paid within thirty (30) days from the effective date of this Addendum.
 - a. This COLA payment will be prorated based on length of service with the District for employees who commenced employment with the District in 2023.
 - b. This COLA payment will only be made to employees who are in good standing with the District, i.e., the employee has not given any notice of intention to resign, nor has the District given any notice of intention to terminate or discipline the employee.
- 3. Within thirty (30) days from the effective date of this Addendum, all employees covered by the above-referenced MOU shall receive a one-time (non-PERS) payment calculated as seven percent (7%) of their base salary in effect as of January 1, 2023. This payment will be calculated as seven percent (7%) of the employee's annualized salary for Calendar Year 2023 including the January 1, 2023, COLA adjustment under the MOU, but not including the additional COLA adjustment to be made under Section 2 of this Addendum.
 - a. This one-time payment will be prorated based on length of service with the District for employees who commenced employment with the District in 2023.

- b. This one-time payment will only be made to employees who are in good standing with the District, i.e., the employee has not given any notice of intention to resign, nor has the District given any notice of intention to terminate or discipline the employee.
- 4. The District shall use reasonable best efforts to complete a comprehensive salary benchmark study (i.e., salary study) conducted by a qualified consultant within six (6) to twelve (12) months from the effective date of this Addendum. The District will release a request for proposal (RFP) for a qualified consultant as soon as practicable and no later than three (3) months from the effective date of this Addendum. The Parties will suspend negotiations regarding the employees' total compensation package until after the salary study is completed.
 - a. The total compensation package includes all the aspects of employee compensation, including without limitation salary, comp time, allowances, paid time off (PTO) and other benefits.
 - b. If the salary study and subsequent negotiations regarding the total compensation package have not been completed by January 1, 2024, the salary schedule for all covered employees shall be increased based upon the June 1st semiannual consumer price index for the urban San Francisco Oakland Hayward area as published for the preceding year or upon any alternative consumer price index that the Parties mutually agree represents local inflation experienced by District employees during Calendar Year 2023.
- 5. The Parties agree that the final salary study will be the basis for setting total compensation for each position at a level that represents the value of the average (i.e., 50%) total compensation package for similar/comparable positions/classifications at similar/comparable public agencies. In connection with establishing salary schedules for all positions based on the results of the salary study, the District's Board of Directors (Board) reserves all rights to set compensation at a higher level for any particular position(s) as may be deemed necessary or desirable by the Board for purposes of recruiting, retention, etc.
 - No employee's compensation package shall be reduced as a result of the salary study.
 - b. Any salary increase for a position/classification based on the results of the compensation study shall be phased in over the term of the new MOU, in annual increments of five percent (5%) per year up to the total increase, and the parties agree that the term of the new MOU shall be five (5) years. The total increase for any position shall not exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the salary schedule currently in effect for that position.
- 6. The District Manager will be the administrator for the consultant contract for the salary study and will direct and oversee the consultant's efforts in the District Manger's sole discretion.
 - a. The District Manager will meet and confer with the Union designated representatives for purposes of obtaining their input regarding similar/comparable

- agencies and establishment of similar/comparable classifications for purposes of the salary study.
- b. The RFP for the salary study shall require the consultant to footnote or otherwise describe any notable or material differences in titles and/or duties of positions being compared.
- 7. Pending completion of the salary study, the Parties will continue to meet and confer in good faith regarding matters other than elements of the total compensation package.

Signatures

AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE,	COUNTY,	AND MUNICIPAL	EMPLOYEES,	LOCAL
101				

Carol McEyon	
Carol McEwan, Business Agent	

DATED: May 16, 2023

Detlef Adam, Chapter President

DATED: May 16, 2023

Joe Davis, Chapter Vice President

DATED: May <u>16</u>, 2023

SAN LORENZO VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

Mark Smolley, President of the Board

DATED: May ___, 2023

June 1,2023

Rick Rogers, District Manager

DATED: May ___, 2023

6-1-2023 M



МЕМО

Date:

March 2, 2023

Subject: Revision of Section 6.2 in Classified MOU

Details: 6.2 Additional PTO

For all employees covered by this MOU who do not receive uniforms, in addition to PTO provided pursuant to Section 6.2, Paid Time Off (PTO), of this MOU, District shall grant an additional (16) sixteen hours of PTO. Said additional PTO is granted in lieu of uniforms. The additional sixteen hours of PTO shall be accrued on July 1st of each year and added to each employee's accumulated PTO balance following direct payment of any PTO in excess of the maximum PTO accumulation rate pursuant to Section 6.1, Paid Time Off (PTO), of this MOU.

APPROVED

Rick Rogers, District Manager

Date

APPROVED

Detlef Adam, Chapter President

1202

Date

APPROVED

AFSCME Rep

Data



MEMO

Date:

March 2, 2023

Subject: Revision of Section 8.5 In Classified MOU

Revision of 2nd, 3rd and 4th Paragraphs Details:

Provision of District uniforms and/or safety shoes will be approved by the District Manager, and employees are responsible for laundering their uniform articles. Employees who are required to wear a District approved uniform shall be responsible for reporting to work in a clean and neat fashion and maintain a serviceable uniform at all times.

All District personnel in positions that work primarily in the field are required to wear District approved uniforms and safety shoes. These position classifications covered by this MOU include, but are not limited to the following. This list will be updated with new and or removed position classifications for those who primarily work in the field and require District uniforms and safety shoes:

Electrician/Instrumentation Technician I/II Field Customer Service Representative I/II Field Services and System Coordinator Field Service Worker I/II Senior Field Services Worker Lead Field Services Worker Water Treatment and System Operator Senior Water Treatment and System Operator GIS/CAD Specialist **Construction Inspector**

All position classifications covered by this MOU that do not primarily work in the field and are not required to wear a District approved uniform and safety shoes shall be provided an allowance of up to \$150.00 on an annual basis for the purchase of safety shoes.

APPROVED.	Rick Rogers, District Manager	3/2/2023
APPROVED	Dely Ada	3/14/2023 Date
APPROVED	Carol Mugum AFSCME REP	4/21/23 Date